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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMMISSIONER TOD Access: Relay NH
Jared S. Chlcoine 1-800-735-2964

Tel. (603)271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

Christopher J. Eltms, Jr. FAX No. 271-1526

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S. FajltSt. Suite 10
Concord. N.H. 03301-2429

Website:

www.er>ergy.rth.gov

July 13,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH DOE) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE
contract with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (VC #177195), Concord, NH, in the amount of
$349,556 for the federal Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval, through June 30, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2023 upon
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

NH Department of Energy. Low Income Weatherization FY 2023
02-52-52-520010-33560000-074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $349,556

2) Further request authorization to advance to the vendor $45,251 of the above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of Energy's (USDOE) grant guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance
Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for the
Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), and their historical performance delivering the weatherization
program.

NH DOE is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance Program,
funded by a grant from USDOE. The objective of the program is to weatherize homes to reduce energy
consumption and energy costs in eligible low income households. Priority is given to households that
include people who are elderly, disabled, or children, and households with high energy usage. NH DOE
contracts with New Hampshire's Community Action Agencies to provide weatherization services at the local
level. NH DOE estimates that the USDOE's WAP grant award to New Hampshire will contribute to the
weatherization of approximately one hundred and thirty-six (136) homes in the State.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
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Page 2 of 2

The requested advance of funds will enable Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. to operate the
program between monthly reimbursements from the State, and may only be used for allowable program
expenses as detailed in Exhibit C.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

Respectfully submitted.

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner

Attachments

G&C 06/24/20



FORM NUMBER P-37 (venlon 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submissiofl to Governor and
Executive Council for aj^rov^. Aoy information that is private, confkleotial or proprietary must
be clearly identified to dre agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

1.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as ftdlows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTinCATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
New Han^rshire Department of Energy

1.2 State Agency Address
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Tri-County Community Action Program, bic.
1.4 Contractor Address

30 Exchange Street
Berlin. NH 03570

U Contractor fboae

Number

(603)752-7001

1.6 Account Number

02-52-52-520010-33560000-

074-500587

1.7 C^Nnpledon Date
June 30.2023

1.8 Price Limitation

8349,556.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Kiifc Stone, Weatfaerization Program Mattager

1.10 State Agency Telephoire Number
(603)271-3670

1.11 Contractor Signature a 1.12 Name and Title ofCootractor Signatory
leanne Robillaid, Executive Director

1.13 I.I4 Name and Thle of State Agency Signatory
Jared Chicoine, Commissioner

1.15 /Approval by the N.R DetUrfmcnl of Administration. Division of Personnel (^applicable)

j By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Ajtorn^ General (Form, Substance arui Execution)

on: 7/15/2022

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

GAC Item number: GftC Meeting Date:
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2. SERMCES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provi.sion of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date")-
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Conmictor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Complclion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,' including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be^ liable for any payments '
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of siich reduction or tcmiiration.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 Thecontractprice.method ofpayment,and terms ofpaymcnl
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Slate shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to (he Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected,circumstances, In no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACT OR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any pan by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any niles, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States Issue' to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Slates
access to any ofthe Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perfonn the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months af^er the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other {>erson, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Stale employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified In block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 feilurc to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this A^emeot.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, efTectivc two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of"
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph. 8. the Stale may. at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor thai
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 in the event of an early tennination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Stale's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATVACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
repre.sentations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9 l-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is In all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its afEliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
ofTiccrs and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Stale, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of (he Slate, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This' covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein. In an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.) herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatc(s) of
insurance for ail insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereofshall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirement;
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to .secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement maybe amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govemed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement Is the wording
chosen by the parries to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20..THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the eventany oftheprovisions ofthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parlies, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February 1,2002 (Weatherization Assistance Program), the New
Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program State Plan, Weatherization Assistance Program Policies and
Procedures, and Field Guide are all considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract.
The NH Department of Energy reserves the right to use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but not
limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension of agency personnel, disbarment of agency
personnel, disbarment of agencies and/or subcontractors from present or future contracts, and such other legal
remedies as determined to be appropriate by the New Hampshire Department of Justice in the enforcement of
rules and regulations pertaining to the Weatherization Assistance Program.

2. An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F -
Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by
contract or grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor
shall utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four
years.

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a response to the current
status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters written.as a result of the audit
along with the audit report shall be forwarded to the NH Department of Energy within one month of the time
of receipt by the Contractor accompanied by an action plan, if applicable, for each finding or questioned cost.

3. - The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions:

"9.4 All negotiated contracts (except those ofS5,000 or less) awarded by the Subgrantee shall allow the
NH Department of Energy, the US DOE, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any duly
authorized representatives, access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Subgrantee or their
subcontractors, which are directly pertinent to the Weatherization Assistance Program for the purpose of
making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcription."

4. In paragraph 10 of the general provisions, the following sentence shall be deleted; "The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in EXHIBIT A."

5. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles detailed in 2
CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

6. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Contractor for 3 (three) years
from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for awards that are renewed quarterly or
annually, from the date of-the submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, as stated in 2 CFR
200.333 - Retention Requirements for Records.

7. Kirk Stone, Weatherization Program Manager at the NH Department of Energy, has been designated with the
responsibility for overseeing this contract.

Exhibits A, B & C
Initials
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8. The following paragraphs shall be added to the general provisions;

"25. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between the parties that
no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional Federal funds
under any other law of the United States, except if authorized under that law."

"26. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed: Certification Regarding
Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With
Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of
Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and Certification Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.

"27. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance with Copelaod "Anti-Kickback" Act (18
use 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides
that each contractor, subcontract or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any
person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should repon all suspected violations
to NH Department of Energy."

"28. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post
Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on financial procurement
(2 CFR 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post
Federal Award Requirements - Property Standards)"

"29. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. Ail final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
.submitted to the State within sixty (60) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7)."

Exhibits A, 8 &C
Initials

Date31Bl»
Page 2 of 5

Award )ifDE-EE0009916, CFDA #81.042



EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., hereinafter "the Contractor" or "Subgrantec," agrees to
perform weatherization services and all additional services and other work necessary to provide
Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) services to eligible low income individuals in accordance with the
regulations set forth by the U. S. Department of Energy in 10 CFR440 dated February 1, 2002, and in 2 CFR
200 as amended, and in accordance with the provisions and procedures contained in the most recent New
Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan, Policies and Procedures Manual, Field
Guide, and as otherwise administered by the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH DOE).

Periodically NH DOE may issue Subgrantee Guidance (SG) and Subgrantee Notices (SN) or other
clarifications as necessary. All such changes shall be considered as incorporated into the NH Weatherization
Policies and Procedures Manual and Field Guide. The Contractor agrees to alter the Program procedures in
accordance with a SG, SN or other instructions.

The Subgrantee agrees to abide by changes in the NH Weatherization Assistance Program designed to
improve program delivery and further agrees to perform Weatherization Program services in a manner that
will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency programs for low-income households in
order to provide the best services for New Hampshire's low-income households.

2. The contract period, to be known as Program Year 2022 (PY22), will commence on July 1,2022, and will
have a completion date of June 30, 2023, subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

3. Contractor must provide NH DOE with a budget for the use of NH WAP funds before any reimbursement for
weatherizatioD work will be paid by NH DOE.

4. In PY22, Contractor agrees to complete weatherization services on twenty-eight (28) dwelling units according
to the standards outlined in the most recent NH Weatherization Policies and Procedures Manual and Field

Guide.

(a) Weatherization Services arc intended to increase the energy efficiency of the home, and to improve the
home's comfort and safety. A certified energy auditor will first perform a NH WAP energy audit on the
home using scientific test equipment. Specific energy conservation measures and heating source repairs
will then be implemented in order of priority and cost effectiveness. This integrated activity is carried
out in accordance with provisions and procedures outlined in the most recent NH Policies and
Procedures Manual and Field Guide.

(Tj) The minimum number of dwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended shall conform'to the
provisions of this contract. Deviations of more than 20% from expected dwelling unit goals in any given
quarter may result in a reduction of the contract amounts and a reallocation of funds to other contractors.

5. In accordance with the US DOE's "Quality Work Plan" (QWP) and the provisions of Weatherization Program
Notice (WPN) 15-4 https://www.energv.gov/eere/wap/dQwnloads/wpn-15-4-qualitv-work-plan-
requirement-updatel and as modified in WPN 22-4 (Weatherization Program Notice 22-4: Oualitv
Work Plan Requirement Update | Department of Encrgv). beginning April 1,2015, Contractor must have
regular and reliable access to properly trained and certified Quality Control Ihspector(s), available as either
staff or contractors, able to fully function in that capacity. This contract provides funding for continued
training and technical assistance sufficient to allow the Contractor to secure and maintain the skilled
picrsonnel necessary to meet the requirements of WPN 15-4 and WPN 21-4.

Exhibits A, B & C
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6. All work performed under the Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) in New Hampshire, using fedeml
money from any WAP program year, must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Department of
Energy's "Quality Work Plan" (QWP) and,the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). Details arc
presented in the Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for Home Energy Upgrades referred to in US DOE
Weatherization Program Notice 15-4 and updated in Weatherization Program Notice 22-4, as well as in the
New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program's Field Guide, 2021 Edition, which governs bow WAP
energy conservation measures (ECMs) arc to be implemented. The Subgrantee must ensure, and be able to
document for NH DOE, that al! staff and contractors who perform Weatherization work in PY22 are properly
trained and certified for that work and have been informed that their work must meet the requirements of the
SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and reimbursement will not occur.

Exhibits A, B & C
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor, Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc., in total, the sum of:

$.349,556.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which
S 46,897.00 may be expended for Administration,
$ 26,575.00 may be expended for Training & Technical Assistance,
$ 22,087.00 may be expended for Health & Safety measures,
$ 27,746.00 may be expended for Readiness measures,
$ 226,251.00 (the balance), to be spent on weathcrization activities (Program Activity) and.
S 45,251.00 will be issued as a cash advance,

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to NH DOE. Disbursement of the contracted amount shall be
made in accordance with the procedures established by"the State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an advance
basis; limited to minimum amounts needed; and be timed to be in accordance with the actual,
immediate cash requirements of the Contractor in carrying out the purpose of the program. The
Contractor must make timely payments to (sub) contractors in accordance with the contract provisions.
Contractor shall submit a payment request to NH DOE for each month of the contract period. Payment
requests from Contractor shall be received at NH DOE no latcr than the 15''' day of each month, or the
first business day following the 15'** day.

Administrative costs arc provided to cover a specified number of unit completions at minimal standards.
Administrative funds may be pro-rated by NH DOE if production unit completions do not meet expected
production goals.

NH DOE may, as a function of its administrative oversight, modify contracted budget amounts as necessary to
ensure the efficient operation of the NH WAP as long as these modified expendinires do not exceed the
Contracted Amount total as specified above.

All obligations of the State, including the continuance of any payments, are contingent upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.

Exhibits A, 6
Initials
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections I.I 1 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations were
amended and published as Part U of the May 25. 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that ihcy will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to:

Commissioner, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abu.se in the workplace;

(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

Exhibits D thru H

^ Page 1 of7
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification nuraber(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith cfTort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e). and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

Check n if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Tri-County Community Action Program Inc. July 01, 2022-June 30,'2023
Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

Contractor Representative Signature Date

. Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and3! U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program
Weatherization Assistance Program

Contract Period. July 1, 2022- June 30, 2023
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and subrhit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its in.structions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants; loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $ 10,000 and not more than S100,000 for each such failure.

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

Contratw Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.
Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(!) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy (NH DOE) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However,
failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such
person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification iii this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary, participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The pros|>ectivc primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any lime the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NH DOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective parricipant in a lower tier
. covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered

transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certificatioD required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is nonnaily possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont*d

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters • Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) arc not presently debarred, su$F>ended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or

commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) arc not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the.offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b)
of this certification; and

(d) have not, within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal, had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Jneligibility and
Voluntary delusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 Cni Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier coveiKd transtct

ConB^tor^epresent^ive Signature

Tri-Counly Community Action Program Inc.

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

Contractor's Representative Title

Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections i.il and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Jeanjie Robillard, CEO

Contra^or Represeniativ^ignature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.

Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
51000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the requirements
of the Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantees shall certify accordingly.

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

Contracts Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.
-7))h\-90

Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thru H
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DOEF 1600.5(06-94)
QMS Control No. 1910-0400

All Other Editions Arc Obsolele

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED
PROGRAMS

OMB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (0MB), Paperwork Reduction
Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

Tri-Countv Communit\ Action Program Inc. (Hereinafter called the "Applicant") HEREBY AGREES to
comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Energy
Administration Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-
438), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L.
94^82), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975
(Pub. L. 94-135), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department of Energy
Organization Act of 1977 (Pub. L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended,
(Pub. L. 94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and
regulations issued pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on
the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant
receives Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.

Applicability and Period of Obligation
In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance
obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this
assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Applicant
by the Department of Energy.

Employment Practices
Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in program.s or activities resulting from Federal assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
lirtiited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layofT or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or
subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply •
with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance
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form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such information shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related
data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficiaries of the program where nece.ssary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or
understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related
information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to die
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Applicant from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and other sources of information pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws
shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the
date hereof, to the Applicants by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after
such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements
made in this assurance, and that the United Stales shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
person(s) whose signatures appear below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the
Applicant.

Applicant Certification

The Applicant certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.^ (a ̂ py will be furnished to the Applicant upon written
request to DOE).

Tri-County Community Services.
30 Exchange Street, Berlin NH, 03570
603-752-7001

Jeanne Robillard Signature v Date ^llul^O-3
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardecs of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October I, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If Ae initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordanee with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arc from the Federal government, and those
revenues arc greater than S25M annually and

b. Compensation infofrnation is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and iPublic Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to ha\c the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable prqvisions of the Federal
Financial Ac^ounta||>iIity^nd Transparency Act.

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Tri-County Community Action EYogram, Inc.

(Contractor Name) (Date)

Contractor initialsj_
Date:

Page 1 of 2
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. The Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

0  YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Docs the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reijorls filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization arc as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount;

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Contractor initials:
Dare:
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan. Secretary of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRJ-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0005774957

OBf

u.

e

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 10th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



I, Sandy Alonzo
(Name)

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporate Authority)

^ elected official of _Tri-County Community Action Agency Program, inc.
(Corporation name)

(Hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly
(Slate)

elected and acting Board Chair of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on ^ 1 \ such authority

' (Date)

to be in force and effect until September 30'*' 2022.
(Contract termination date)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Robillard
(Name)

Chief Executive Officer
(Position)

(Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire
(State of incorporation)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt of dated minutes or copy of article or section
of authorizing by-law must be attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand as the Elected official of the corporation this
// day 20^.

STATE OF New Hampshire^
COUNTY OF Coos^ !

hairBo

On this day of July 2022. before me, the undersigned Officer,
personally appeared Sandv Alonzo who acknowledged her/himself to be the Board Chair,

of Tri-County Community Acton Program, Inc., a corporation and that she/he as such Board Chair
being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Commission Expiration Date: j ICj

'4t5taTy Public/Justice of the Peace

CHRISTINA MORIN, Notary Public
.. - Stme of New HampshireMy Commission Expires December 19, 2023



ACORD* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATt (MMJOWYYYY)

06/29/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: tf th« csrtHicats holdsr Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED protrislons or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of ths policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this csrtlflcato does not confer rigttts to the certificate holder in lieu of such endortemenKs).

PRODUCEP

Fl/U/Cross Insurancs

1100 Elm Street

Manchester 03101

gojJTACT Andrea NicXiin

fJjflF... (603)669-3218 Kc.Hat (603)645-4331
rnanch.cefts®aossa9ency-com

MSUPERIS) AFfORDMC COVBRAOe MAlC f

M-siiRFRA: Philadelphia indemnity Ins Co 18058

stSUfteo

TrLCoiaity Community Action Program. Inc

30 Exchange Street

Benin NH 03570

•LSuRea B • Giwil® Stale Health Care and Human Services Setf-

M3URERC:

MSURER 0 :

NSURERE:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAWEO ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INWCATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU. THE TERMS.
exausiONS and conditions of such pouoes. umits shown may have been reduced by paid claims.

«JLieVdV4
iRsr
LTR TYPE OF insurance rTMilCSl POUCYKUUBER

X COUMERCUU. GENERAL LIABR.1TY

OCCURCLAMSMAOE

CENT ACGRE0AT6 LIMIT APPLIES PER:

X PaiCY JBCT I IpaICY LOC

OTHER:

AUTOWOeiLE UASLITY

ANY AUTO

X

OYWEO
AUTOS ONLY
KIREO
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

Excess UAS

OED a

SCHEOULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

ClAIMS-UAOe

RETENTION i 10.000

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIASSJTV
ANY PROPRlETORlPARTNER^XECU UVG
OFnCERMEMBER EXCUJOED?
(HtnditofV in NH)
tfn*. dMCffetunMr
DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS SOax

PHPK2433324

PHPK2433331

PHUBS2I555

HCHS20220000056 (39.}NK

POUCYEFF
(WUOOfYYYYl

07/01/2022

07/01/2022

07/01/2022

01/01/2022

(MM/DO/YYYY>

07/01/2023

07/01/2023

07/01/2023

01/01/2023

EACHOCCURRIWCS
TTTOICrTOTTOJTED
PREMISES iEj Beci«Tg<«>

MgOEXP/AiiYcnepMW)

PERSONA!. S AOVINA/RY

GENERAL ACCREOATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

P/of»sslonal Usbilly

cdMSiNi^i) itNCLE Lturr
lEocdwii

BOOAV MJURY(P*( p«r«eA)

BODILY H JURY (P«r aedaem)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(PCf Aqdtfcm)

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

STATUTE E
IH-

e.L. EACH ACCOE^

&L. DISEASE • EA EmPLQTEE

E L DISEASE• PgiCYLIMlT

1.000.000

100.000

s.ooo

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000.000

s  t.000.000

S  1.000.000

2.000.000

2.000.000

1.000.000

1.000.000

1.000.000

OESCRPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO II I. Additional R#m»rfc» SehoduM. may b« NUCAod " i«o«* spAM l« roqulredj

NH Department of Energy

21 South Fruit St.. Sle. 10

Concord NH 03301
r  . •

SHOULD ANY OF THE AeOVE OESCRIBEO POLICIES BE CANCBUEO BEFORE
THE EXPIRATtON DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE OELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTtlORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORO namo and loiflO a/o rsgistored marks of ACORD
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

ptiiressiim .vssrj(3<ni>N

To the Board of Directors of certified m/blic accouktakis
Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate wolfeboro • korth coiwv
Berlin, New Hampshire DOVFJt« concord

STRXTHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial staterrients.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material missfatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatemenl

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessnients, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30. 2020 and 2019. and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2020, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative information
We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. and Affiliate's 2019
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 21. 2019. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year erided June 30,
2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which It has l>een derived.

Other Information .
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Is. presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the urwJerlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such infomnatlon directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted In the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28,2020, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal
' control over finandal reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Communrty Action -Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

October 28. 2020
North Conway. New Hampshire



TRU;QUWTY COMMUNtTY. ACTtQM PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFtLIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

2020 2019

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restncted cash, Guardianship Services Program
Accoonts receivable
Property held for sale
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

$  2.237.081 1  1,400.750
798.937 583.963

1.322.852 1.274.083
47,000 47.000
307,017 231.161
102,430 65.886
77.882 3^.937

4.911.199 3.656 .'680

PROPERTY

Property and equipment 12.344,fl05 12.086.152

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3

Less accumulated depredation 1:5.601.944) (5.178.535)

• Property, net 6.742.881 6.307.817

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 384.711 418.936

TOTAL ASSETS $ 12.038.771 $ 10,983,433

. LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refurxfable advances

Other llatxiities

$  437,843
3.554

180.427
243.779
49,059

137,304
181.463

850.982

S  148.449
4.870

221,571
204,079
210.952
69,524
197,157

598.195

Total current liabilities 2.084,411 1,674.797

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

4,792,557 5,227,835
3.355

Total liabilities 6.876.968 6.905.987

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

4.565,253
596.550

3,399,192
678,254

Total net assets 5.161.803 4.077.446

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 12.038.771 S 10.983.433



TRl^QUWTYCQMMLlWrrYACTIQMPRQQRAM tWC AND AFFILIATE

COHSOUOATED STATEMEMT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE TEAR ENDED JUNE M. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Qr»nt» »nd contracts

Proonm bjndb^
UlUly pfogrami
In-ktnd contfltutions
Contrlbuttons

Fundratsing
Rental incofflo

Interest income

Gain (loss) on disposal of property
Loss on write dovm of property l>M tor sale
Other revenue

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other 8un>orL end
net assets released hom restrictions

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Senrlccs:
^ency Fund
Head Start

Guardianship
Traruportatton-

Volunteer

Worldorce Ocveiopment
Carroll Cou^ Dental
Support Center
Hometesa

Energy and Community DevelopmenI
Ektor

Housing Services

Total program services

Supportlno Activities.'

General end admlntstrailve
Fundrabing

Total tupportlrtg adMlles

Total functional expenses

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Without Donor

RMtHctlona

i  14.425.941
1.0S4.133

1.923.853

455.826
328.215

32.544

635.559

923

2.225

4.379

18.891,296

565.176

19.456.474

1.047.356

2.769.065
769.597

991.504

94,845
346.114

653.810
556.244

600.148

7,824.201

1.149.136
220.900

17,224.920

1.062.613
2.680

1.065.493

16.290.413

1.168.061

3.399.192

8  4.565,253

With Donor

ftMUItUona

%  483.472

483.472

(565.176)

(81.704)

(81.704)

678.254

596,550

2020 2019

Total Tottl

S  14.909,313 8 14,475.114

1.064,133 1.167.509

1.923,653 1.267.103

455.626 477,187
326.215 230.986
32.544 39.303

635.559 625.046
923 643

2.225 (32.692)
. (255,492)

4,379 •  198.364

19.374.770 18.210.651

19.374.770 18.210.851

1,047,356 950.639

2.769.065 2.756.702
769,597 767.241

991,504 916.089

94.845 116:408
348.114 354.263

653,810 747.474

558.244 355.206

800,148 714.066

7.824.201 7.788360

1.149.136 1.191371
220.900 172.852

17.224.020 16.835.151

1,062.613 1.032.207

2.660 9.895

t.065.493. 1.042.102

18.290.413 .  17.877.253

1.084.357 333398

4.077.446 ' 3.743.848

S  5.161.803 8 4.077.446

See Notoa to Consolidated Flnancisi Statements

4



Tftl-COUNTY COMMUMITY ACTtQW PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFIUATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 20i0 AND 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVmES
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconc&e change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activilies:

DeprocJatlon and amortization
(Gain) toss on disposal of property
I.OSS on write down of property held for sale

(Increase) decrease In assets:
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Increase (deasase) m iiabllitiea:

Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries
Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

Other liabiliUes

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATINO ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACHVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM RNANCINO ACTIViriES
Net repayment on demand note payatila
Repayment on long>term debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FtNANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEflAENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for

Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property donated

2020

$  1.064.357

436,197
(2.225)

(46.769)
(75,856)
(16.544)
(43.645)

(41.144)
39.700

(161.893)
47.760
(15.694)
252.787

1.454.651

4.495
(273.711)

(269.216)

(145.664)
(4.671)

(150.555)

1.035.080

2.403.649

131.679

2019

$  333.598

448.556

32.6^
255.492

(117.426)
(18.954)

1.683
(8.397)

(15.705)
956

23.444
(42.364)
6.066

211.027

1.110.692

14.283
(95.588)

(81.305)

(516.022)
(141.273)

(4.446)

(661.741)

367.646

2.035.603

$ 3.438.729 $. 2.403.649

152.078.

18.830

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statoments

S
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TRUCQUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION! PROGRAM. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED RNANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community sen/ice programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services. IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.
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Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 horhe-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to sen/e in that capacity. This prograrh serves 413
individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, dodr-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
actjyely served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 27,955 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs;



The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroll Count}/ Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Graflon County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include:. crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter;' support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.
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LoW'Income Weatherization

The ■ NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals In 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail "and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United Stales Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Unifonn
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200.
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit of Cornerstone's
compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales and the
audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.
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Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basts of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP). which require the
Organization to report information regarding its finaricial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-Imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donorsi and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $596,550 and $678,254
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. See Note 13.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net

assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is. when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without dohor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable, balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method: this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs,, maintenance, and betterments that^materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an Individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows;

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and. Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.
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Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in, the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $181,463 and $197,157 as of June 30. 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue.Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information
returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS.
generally for three years after it is filed, the Organization is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2016.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Organization does not believe th4y have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered arinuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed In the Internal Revenue Code.' Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited Financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.
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Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Donated prdbertv and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipitient are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed In
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclas'sifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts Is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of

donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30. 2020 and 2019.

As of June 30. 2020 and 2019. there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $307,017 and $231,161,

respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), O/sc/osures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program sen/ices and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs and supporting services based' on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and derital
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.
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The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health arnJ Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30. 2019 was 10.4%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was approximately 10.82%, which is
allowable because It is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $25,483 and
$11,698, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
'Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs' The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2020 and 2019.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows
(230): Restricted Cash (ASU 2016-18). The amendments address diversity In
practice that exists in the classification and presentation of changes in restricted
cash on the statement of cash flows. The amendments require that a statement of
cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash
equivalents. As a result, amounts generally described as restricted cash and
restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents
when reconciling beginning-of-perlod and end-of-perlod total amounts shown on the
statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 is effective for the Organization's fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020 and has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.
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During the year ended June 30, 2020. the Organization adopted the provisions of
FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made {Topic 958). This accounting
standard is rneant to help not-for-profit entities evaluate whether transactions
should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions and, if the
transaction is identified as a contribution, virhether it is conditional or unconditional.
ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization determines whether a resource provider
is receiving commensurate value in return for a grant. If the resource provider does
receive commensurate value from the grant recipient, the transaction is an
exchange transaction and would follow the guidance under ASU 2014-09 (FASB
ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker, the
transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending June
30, 2020 and 2019 are.presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There, was no material
impact to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no
adjustment to opening net assets was recorded.

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (C0\/ID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might
be imposed in response to the pandemic. COVID-19 also makes it more
challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Organization,
particularly over the near to medium term.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABIUTY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2020
and 2019:

2020 2019

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 2,257,081 $ 1,400,750
Accounts receivable 1,322,852 1,274,083
Pledges receivable 307.017 231.161

Total financial assets 3.886.950 2.905.994
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Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 596,550 678,254
Less net assets with time restrictions to be .

met in less than a year (410.015) (565.176)

Amounts not available within one year 186.535 113.078

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months £ 3 700 415 £ 2.792 fli^

It Is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $2,860,000 and $2,786,000 respectively,
at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the

, balances in interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, there was approximately $2,653,000 and
$1,750,000, respectively, of deposits held in excess of the FDIC limit. Management
believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30;

2020 - 2019

Cash, operations $ 2,257,081 $1,400,750
Restricted cash, current 796,937 583.963
Restricted cash, long term 384.711 4181936

Total cash and restricted cash £ 3:438.729 $2.4Q3.64g

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $20,040 and $20,010, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30. 2020 and 2019. These amounts are Included in restricted cash on the
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a twnd issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and js equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30. 2020 and 2019 was $174,626 and $174,451. respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $796,937 and $583,963. respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2020 and 2019
was,$796,937 and $583,963, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property that is held for sale at year end. This was donated to another non-profit
Organization during the year ended June 30.2020.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. 'The total amount restricted at
June 30. 2020 and 2019 was $190,045 and $179,277. respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2020 and 2019, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30. 2020 and 2019, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $102,430 and $85,886, respectively.

NOTES. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30. 2020 and 2019. employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30. 2020 and
2019, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $243,779 and $204,079,
respectively,
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY
Property consists of the following at June 30. 2020:

Capitalized Accumulated
Cost Depreciation

Building
Equipment
Construction

In progress
Land

$-9,810,288
2,105,950

4,727
423.840

$ 3,753,302
1.848.642

Property consists of the following at June 30. 2019:

Capitalized Accumulated
Cost Depreciation

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

$ 9,709,749
1,950,063

2,500

423.840

$3,469,618
1,708,917

Net

Book Value

$6,056,986

257,308

4,727

423.840

£ 6.742.861

Net

Book Value

$6,240,131
241,146

2,500

423.840

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equlprnent, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 totaled
$435,310 and $447,669. respectively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounting
to $47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the acconipanying consolidated
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to market value of
this property was $255,492 in 2019.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30. 2020 and 2019 consisted of
the following:
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2020 2019

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027. $ 110,824 $ 124,867

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69% ^
per annum. . Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021. 307,719 328,896

\

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
.annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit
that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April
2021. 4.478 9,618

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's •
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021. 4,228 7,642

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's .
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. 3,948 7,385

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due November 2020. 705 2,331

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023. 7,294 9,739

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51®/o
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023. 387,227 395,429
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2020 2019

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%; Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

2,547,308 2,634.595

1,617,600 1,617,600

250.000 '250.000

5.241,331 5,388,102
(10.931) :(11.818)

5,230.400 5.376,284
(437.843) (148.449).

3^4 792 557

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30. 2020 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

Amount

437,843
123,107
485,399
118,243
122,486

3.954.253

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.
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NOTES. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30. 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30. 2017, the Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The
assets and iiabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The. obligations included in capital leases at June 30. 2020 and 2019, consisted of
the following:

2020 2019
Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 1.213 $ 3.291

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at'8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in March
2021. 944 2,261

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is .
secured by a copier and will mature in May 2021. 1.397 2.673

3.554 8.225
Less current portion f3.554) (4.8701

£  -= 2

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30. 2020 were as
follows:

Year ending
June 30 Amount

2021 S
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NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE
The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages" and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement
Borrowings under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30. 2020 and 2019. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was not
required to make payments of interest or principal prior to maturity. The unsecured
revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year ended June 30, 2019,

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES
The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and reriewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a rrtonth to month basis. For the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$181,004 and $181,127, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2021 $ 127.803
2022 7.32i

135.124

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their sen/ices to the Organization.
These sen/ices are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.
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Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
approximately $14,380,020 (74%) and $13,951,828 (77%). respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact oh the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2020 and 2019, approximately 66% and 69%, respectively, of the Organizations
total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30. 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 307,017 $ 231,161
FAR 102,998 117,470
Restricted Buildings 85,713 87,541
DOE 46.287
FAP/EAP 24,350 11,290
Loans-HSGP 22,029 19,907
RSVP Program Funds 5,887 7,056
Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,571
RSVP - Matter to Balance 500
Loans-HHARLF 104
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BWP/HRRP Program 94
10 Bricks Shelter Funds - 142,190
Support Center - 25,939
Weatherization ■ 25,000
Senior Meals ■ 5,130
Head Start :

Total net-assets wKh donor restrictions $ 596.550 S 678.254

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Comoliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncohnpliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmentat Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin. New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

The exterior soil and interior parts of .the East Wing. Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is rnaintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30. 2018, legal actions were brought against the
Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30.
2020, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by the Organization at this time.
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NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD. the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $155,278 and $129,407 were held in a segregated account at
June 30. 2020 and 2019. respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the .residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD'S prior written approval. Residual receipts of $31,049 and $46,514 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

HUD has Initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with ttis policy noted above, subsequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,652 from the
residual receipts account for equipment.

NOTE 16. RECLASSIFICATION
Certain arpounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NQTF 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 28,
2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVEffA/MHA/T AUD/TWG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller Genera! of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc..(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 28, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered'Tri-County Community
Action Program lnc.!s internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misslatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A signiricant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc. s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompllance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompllance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report . / • • * • j
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our. testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's intemal control or on compliance. This report Is an Integral part of ah audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's Intemal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28. 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INf!

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

■ OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described In the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-Cbunity Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30. 2020. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grarits applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program lnc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the .United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County" Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federa! Program
In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control Over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for.the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s Internal control over ccmpliarKe.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees. In the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance Is a deficiency, or a" combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described ir^ the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be'material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of Intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2020
North Conway. New Hampshire
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TRI-CniJMTY COMMUNITY ACTIOM PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Pedormed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No Instances of noncompiiance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit;

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors* report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported In accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7.. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services. LIHEAP - CFDA #93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, CSBG - CFDA #93.569

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Home Energy Assistance (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. TrI-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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RaKjdall S: Pilotte

S U M 'M A A \

AccjOuntinc profcuionil.wiih lA'cr 29 \'e*rtorcxpencnc<. of«'hich2) )xar<utrc w>iih ■ tingle pri\-»(c manurBCiur<r.
l6yc»rjor«|*rkncennn3j;ingwcouflimsprofeuioftals. Revcwju^cftciejinclude:

Finifltal Swctncnii Aftpunis Payabtes Invemory FUcd Assets
Ptyroll Bank Rccondlisiiofts Accounts Receivables Saleable Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Maiiageincni Audits Fore^siing

E X f r.«IK h- c F

Tpi-CQliNTY CQMMUNITV ACTION PRCXiRAM. INC.. Ucrlih. NI I 06/20li-Preitehi
CfQ(20l7-PfCJCfM) _
Wnrk xlofcly with the CHOi Trcawer end Finatta Cnnimiiice to idcniir)- pcrfoc'rancc goals for ihc'Agcwy add.lp
mainiiin Diiems to" ir^iiiiw pcrforhiajicc against iho^-goab. Plan. dWcci. .cD^i.mic. in^kn^ni •.nd evatuaic the
rtnaaeUI (nanagemetti-synems end aetiniics-nf the Agency with i budget of.SISM'.
•  'Prqurc/providcrcnniplcic end •ecunic rinandal. staiitikel. end Kcouniing records for the Agency and outside

re^uUi.oiy-ecenciQ..
•  Ax ■■ inrmber of the seniur' nanagnitcni leant, assists in ihc rormulatioit aitd execution dT roq>oraie rinaiice

pdi.icie's: objixiii-Fs a.r^'pfQgrfntti.-
«  Prcfprcs prp'grbm. enil .i(gcney budges iit conjunciibti with the C^O and Prngrprn. pircci^s. Plan, diit^.

'^wditoi'c. ibtplcnvni and cveluaic fiscal pcrfarinancc rcncwi of Tri^CtAimyCAPs'divisions-.
•  Hire, irein;.'dircet-dhd <\-a1uaic engtlbyee perfnf^n'cr within the dcpanrtwia; recoinnchd prOntniions and-salary

adjusinients.
■ « Prcn-idcs supcr>-isiun and ifirrciion' for the Facilities Managcmcni Teem, ensuring tliat ail inurtgages. leases ond

co\-cnani't ere tnairaaiiKtl for Tri-County. CAP * feciihic*. Crttlifln of litx-ycef ci.pitol.pbn-.
•  Rc.vicwi.cash Hnu? 'for each divisioti. nxniiiui cadi nunagencni prerticcs. and monitor in^xsimenis assivlatcd

with ncR iwo^'ny.-
•  Prcpajr^ riv%-)v.ar debt ritduVt fun i}l;in.

Fiscal Olnxlor/lnierlm'Cro f2dl6.- 2017)
.• Pifcci and rninagc a fiscal stalT.nr 5 and prnrcsscs associated with the general ledger,. |U)toll, and accoums

payable, accounts receivable, cosh ncccipts and ftxc'd assets.
•  Prepare and ^pervise the prodtieiion of finoncial siaienvnis including Ualaiicc .Sheet: Revenue and Cxpcn.<c

,Rif^s.-fihd C«i Su'nutarib on a iri^'thlyantl xitnual basis.
• M.i.iniain.iyofvrsi-eouniiRg comrols qn-graias a.nd.cuttiri^iOns. lo cruurc accunv.rc%-cnuc lepening and tipensc

rmcking t'e.sup(>on piriodie.'nioniiorinB's byfunUers and auditors.
•' Ensiirc ail bdlanee sNcet,.ri:^-entic and expense xe'nuhis arb atolyted and rricdneiled pefiddtcally.
.• Cuilobora'ie .vi-iih Division Dirt^iiuf's lit inutiitor.dcpanirtcnal rct'cnue'onJr.xpcitses msuv budget.
• Worked, 'unijt '(He CFO in -(kvl-.lob real linie nwulth- -aitd* anhdal finkricbi rqtoftiiig: a'nd idipiejtKtiting

depannteiual gnaiti.
•  p'reparr audit schedules for external audiioft.-
•. Colbboraie with external auditors in completing annual audit in a.ttntcly nunner. -

Ace'oumlng Manager (201 S>-2n|d)

Sr. AccounUnt'(20l2.*2(),l;d)
RA.NpAl^.L PIL.OTTE RESUME:

KENT NUmmON GROUP. INC. flTloa Mltte Sral Feeds. Ine.l. Lj-mdnnderry. NH. 03/I9i:9-09/20!0
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Atliflant ControMcr (2(X)S-2'0i'0)

•  Emutcd oivAccufi'ic and iinKly--ninnihl)r»i)d yrnr i-nd chuic. eMuis1in|••a^■c^c |ircparo(io'rf of a ronsojrdaicd and
individtol rnunctfl statcmoit in accord^ncie unih CAA'P fop.ninc inanuTaciurins pbnu and 41 rctaii ttorct «nih
pou. rc%-ciNiti in cxetts or5300M; Additional rctpoMiUlitlu irvetucled prepann^ journal cnirin. nccouni
analjiii. invrniory and'obsm'ation. Tixcd aucts; and dqjrcciaiion.

•  ' Manager^ iriined. and fwpmriicd a nafT accuunum twponsible' for rnjurinit acnimiej'cHtfnarehirtci; inyeniory
rccdnciltalion. lonhapc tax rcitOTi, bajik rrconciliaiiMu. and .aui|;nntrm of special-projccis.

•  Ov^w all axpea't of proprietary ronuiiv, mulii-ttate pajTofl'iy-ncm' for 300 en^ioyecit. .Prfpared all federal
and nate payroll .Ux itpona. ttWIudin]; i^uancilyand year-end r^urna. proeesxing of W.2r. ik) xupcr^-irimi of
payroll clerk.

«  Inierfarcd >kiih.l8 xiriouj banks throujslMui |ilcw Engbnd andMid'Aibntic area used as deposiioriei.
•  rrcpared.multi'SUie;sBlet/uK tax-return^ and acted as point dfcontocrfiMaiMjiii.
•  I^oeii\-tty eoncbed apd eofttalic.d plnpi and itoie monagciiicm on the annial bud^ de\<ck>ptiKni process.
•  Qxtrsaw.moftth^cn'd accTwIs.
•  Assincd and respond lb ludiinrt; r^ueds on arwyal audit.
'• Filed annual franchise and-ahao'dctned properiy rer^rwith opprnpriaie oatct.

AecvoafiasMaoacer M999-200.3)

Suppened the Corporate CiMMroilrf'i in1iiaii\:n by pro^'idmg .Mipermion and ovenighi. to the AccouraiflgTunciion.
Suiiprri^ed and trained two aecnunu |Sayable-clerks-on Clun of Accounts. Aeck^unis-Pijyable; lirnely arid .accurate
prqccssins ^^d pajnticnj of vendor's invoices, cniployce-travel rcimbvrscnKnii. and iundard-'accouniin{i pr^ic'cs.

Aeeo«n<an(/Po)*r.on Supervisor (1994* 1999)

Aectvani'int (I9I9-I994) •

NQRT1 IERK:TEI.F.C0M. inc.. Cont.-ord. Nil 03/l9S7-Oi/l9t!9
AstBei'iie Results Aeeo'uhl'iaii M9Ki;-l9(v9)
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REGAN L. PRIDE

SUm*i>*rv

Wjr c^ficacc ifacb ihe/irtdJ of convict i«I>ne>9|i-. e^»iioo. (nd pwWir (dmiAintnios
TVi* cofflbiniiion bnop a wide aiiajr of kruiHcdfe anJ itiJU io (he ublf fo» youf OftAniaiien I «m a
Kan phjrr, a (aursi-trabrr. aad ad^ at iMrrpenoail icUiiou.

-RCVCLAKT KKOWLCOCC hKP SKILt AKE/i$

• pM^dTAct ia pidtlic tputiits fM hMinru and ucMeai-epplkitinnt. aAd uotmciaial
. iiroi^ Wriiini lUII's kad ia'ierpmona.l comauaktiion (Litli. aMitr le icvh when, and MiM cdnicam
• Ap^eacttabk. nvra and penohabk.tiyk in (ckaiaft ctauai and iaieraeiini wiih colltacwrf
• Kebtisicdtr'aiiMiiimallKnwki.<ncinctftOtaAd{cndiil((ka(riork)

.  • riyanajr Hriih mirc Alkntwft OnWr ap^kationauiic.
• f1wcncj-wiihX^ieCAOeo(np«ic/-4ld('ddnAiiic'ioAH'iir
• l[tmilari(y'«nih-'A(rVicwGI$iAft«irc.
•. ramiliai with Avantc Emcrpaiw lteioarct Planunj
• familiar BMSI fw>d accoMitac and An'iar a>tusii^avhiOtft( toilwatc
• A^.ai hlmmrdiyAdete Orcwi^oaitV MX «rb-uit dci;tfttoA«art

UH)Hk CXPEKlCKCl'

NORTH CWSrtRV COUNCIL REGIONAL PCANKIKC COMISSiON IJaklbn Ml
TITLE: Flu^r.Mi2-20O t-']0)S-30ll
Managed tofid wwu wchakal auicuncr pfotmn k«d<d by USDa Rwal OrxtlOfuwM. Ceadatud "Fall ton-
Acti^iai" a«fllici of Auniripat lolid wtoc dcptnmcni eoemiinn. RaWewed and (^dsicdieMmins piiVn for-
niymcvil >olid wuie.fkHiiki. Orpnittd bomabotd baxardova niikcite mnn Ocaud a»d deli^red'
•Ifa«.r»|,p.(%rtmi Ibi wlid iiiiK opcmioi cenifieaitoa.. C'eatrdpllci procram to reduer fdiwn food
from landnlb (n .4 conmuniiki.

'20IJ.}0|4

INNQV'AnVE STKUCnjRAI. R'UII.OIKC PROOUCrrS
TITt.E; Pra)«Tl'hlaai(5fr
fVribrTMd a..raoeiy of inehidiin bwiiMit plan iacturaiina and prndim dc^rlftpmeni anMiucd «Uk a
ii»fl-«p rempiaji in ihe ̂ iMtrtd wood,»hciAi^ idaiuy. I Cfwied rncUWiiaa dcaUfiuj.-bsiti .ad leaKd
pnxoxypci.-aad'aitiitod in martrciiac'uiiviiki.

3Q0O* htseta

ICAKTOOlENTERrRISF^. Li^, NH
TITLE: bMiitr. Compau'r Appilraiionr Contofiint
AuiiuhVe d(M barlncai; lethaicai appliraiieat. Cttaicd fuMamitrd wlwiioni Inx-oKiaj;
AfieCAD. MS Work. MS EartI, KIS Ac<f» aoIUair tpplkaiion*. I aim pcrkvin web »fk IITM L and t'Gl
drVtiepnarnL Ki/dA'aie letup, upgrsdrt. and ueubkahndrlnf.
Rec.eai clkwUproJceii (nekadr:
•  New Enttand F.lc(tti« Wire Corp - lApJementsiain.Ar a»-aau hlRP-dt AP'S tehtduline uiftwaff

cwpoieiUed WIP1a5«1iBj.<)Ht<In..W«p|«Wf workauiina [auallsiiem. iu<ito>eritoiirainins.
Liuletea'NM Seaiof ̂ ImII Lrafut - rwiomprotrtmriinj-and-iuppcrt-ofiniiiikjl'roRwa/f

•  Loviatina.CorpnratfiOedti Uoipa-Webiiic.dnlcnar^.maiMrAancr.
•  llrklinrf CtfeL - Web liu draifti frW Atiukiak bud diruilwioi.
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dorald F. Mllllken, Jr.

Executive Summaiy:

EAthvala^. dejlicated .end hardwcrlcing' professional^ ofTofino over'.20 ye;ui at
btoof^-tiaied sxpeHenCie In Prbjea Oire^ri. poScy and praoedurel deytlopment.
tralnlAO & development, budoet ad'*i>nistrBiion end .business ̂ fationi vMthlnfesl*
paced environment

Experteno:

'Trt-CountyComm'unltyAcaon Program, (ne.
Prqgie.m Msnoger I, Director: WMthertu'ttbn a Employment Programs

Serfin.KH
4-1-13,fo'|]res<M-

Prdyide Ipsdefsliip and oyera^hl to program'sopcraUcna, budgets lepdnbig; •
CoordIrute'andln(egfett'prDgram9^ktMtlos.■
Mire,-SipervtM.and manage staff; .^cMng in-ni^jse.and.itioeram emiHoyees.
Prepam.-giBnts and froposals.
.Oi|t«iop. pre'parjeaM W^'meht program budgeis..narrBtM».
Review end reoorwOe.progrem ftrtandal reports'for ̂ mbuearnant.
iRteraict-vvtth progrem monNom-, .outside audUore; F^rd agen^ eudHorsand others (n
review of prpgrdn octMile's. odinpaenco and rthtmeial aooountdbiiiiy

•Oevoipp n^ prograns and-Kincfng-strearra m approprtate...

TrKl.ouii^ Cpnimuintty Acdoii Prc^rem, Inc.
Craw Chief/'^tato'Certtfidd.Eheif^'Auditor' NHS-l>05to 4^ -15
PtorthemiE^roea Eatery, Inc. North Con^. NH
President ro^rel Manager- li-ir2002 to SilS>2005.

■  Eetbhated food arid beverDg«:cosis:re<|uisIllonlr^;and purchasing supptes
' Ajsaisted utdhlirMtas In idehtrfytftgena resoMngpiobleTO^^
Oorferred with. food. ah.d other! penonnei to plan menus end' reiaied
ecUvflies.
Directed hlrfr^ end essionmem!cf-personnel.
iniresstJgdldd ahd resolved food qui^yjand servtoa-compieints.
MalrTtained eU:.(9Cord8;8ha pfoduc&j reports.'

. Executed dpiy o'pieaito'ns c^'re'stduraht management.
Hatrield«R^olds Electrtc en-IES. Inc;.Company Phoeriix. A2
PrpldctMana^r S^.1Sr20dOYo.1(>'3(>-^2
Ap^led knoelodg'e^of.the construction trade in the dally operstion cf'dutJas.
R6wew!ed.pro^'prp(«K^. to ddermine time frame; 'funding limitations.' p^cedur^
for-Accomplishing prpjed. steflUtg reiquimmehts'and allotrnent.of availabie re^roes
to various phaaes of proiecti.



GO'Entefp^hot; Inc. takp Havaou-Ctty, AZ
PivaMmtiOanera/Miflaoar E'l*19M.loS-16>2000
PurehasA ARTISAN ELECTRIC.,INC. iha name.
CbnuaM to perfom ̂pedfled obnsiruction-wod acioss the state M'Artzona:ln
aosrdanoe i^h'arch^cfsptans.tti/epiyitt. optfes sfkI other sp^itiltons.
Estimated costa-.of matenats. labor and use df equipment reouired lofuBiii pmvtiioris of
oontrnd and prepared bids.-
CMfemd ifAh clients to nepotiate lerrra of oontmei.
Asstsled subprdnates in ktentlfyinp anidfesphrinQ'prooierns,
'OdiTMh'nretedeffedi^'presentatiorislclU^^

Education;.

NHT' Concord
Aasopiates Qegree tn.Eleclroruc Technology ^955
Xheo;ry

LRCC Loomia
Electricel Syiteme Installatjon A l^fnteriehce, 19'8B
Required for Joume^enelect'ridsl testing.

Additional Training:

6 CUE tralrUr>g c^rtefpf Grant wntlnp for non- profits.To enhartce myposHio'n on the'
board of Chtidren UrOriited. Inc.
Sucoessfuly completed't^i prestigious -Six S.iGMA" management course In 2001
IMileEmpico^wtth
Matfitld«Rey^ldS Eteddc en IES-. he. Company F^boeriJA.AZ.
SucpKsfu&y cornpleted ifainlr^ cM'rtes ahd 8emlf\are iior;iead safo Mork practices
asbestos qw^|rene8s..6SHA 30, CPR.jelectrtcal cqde updslee.
SucdBSdvfly compleM Business managerTwrd daiSiBS in AZ
Durlngtha 1965-2001.
Succpiss^y corfipijsied tmining and testing to be e NH.State certified Erieray Auditor
.in.2q09. "■

Community:

Board mernber'Criildfen <UnSnilied. Inc.. Conway NH :Nor>-Prorrt'
Board member Beifin RevHatizati^ Qdhmrtlce. Bertfri.NH 'Noo- ProfH"
Past member of the advisory board.andioddesigoer fclr the'Myotonic Dystrophy
FoundaUohsTirst'websIte.
Pipvtoirs o^er and webmaSter for the Myotonlc Oyftrophy Infomiaton >vebsite.

Uoense:

Held an EMrfcat Journdyinah DoenM NH
Meld art EtectrtMl Contrador LldehM AZ

References:.Aveilabte upon request



h. miiis ■

Pfl0^gSSIOW>l SUHHARr.^d SMIH

ButiniKS Professiowl With ix^rtencc and ovcrslte o/ financiel, Qualir>' Assuranc'e and Operations
CQimponents for small and mid-sae buslr^sses and organlzaripns. Pro/essiona!,.n<xit)|e vvflh proven
analytical sJ^iDs. Qemonstrated record of effective probiem soh^, sound business Jl^oefnenl and
cu^omer service.

•• SusineM.OeveiopmefttgUrtnin^aBud^eiiAg Wfiinfl$wa«w.Kiof
.• Cirtiomiei Service ACttni ««4iior»-

Acset KM^mcni • CeniTcMe. liANS>>Si0^GremeM. l.rSH -2016
EiteriPycdafef use oT KlooioA.E^rtt MM»pen*ni. WSM Mi«
Conifw McfoiUtton. AO^MufMion t Compfixnce

PftOfg«tOWALgxWftfM«

fnsfde Prpf/uct^n MMtger

H«r 20.18 • OKcmtei 2018
Inside PfCdwaion lianagdf responsible;fof managing scheduling and dose out of dry'tiaiemcnt
systems Irisiaits,

• LMoh wftn nbrreoiMiei ihfbupKput sctwduilnp. insun and ctejcou processes. Liaisan nkh uto leam arsd Outtfeie
Pro^on Minager tp ensure proposal, (reianauon and mstemiomt met ttou npeclalioos. conioiny sundarte
and Ktitanty requirements (or dry oascmcrusysiemj. . - . . r

P/joJect Ma'nagtr

^il;20}7 - ApVfl 2018
•Projea Manager reiponslble for mana9in9 residential home cpnsiruafon process ihrooghout ihe
pl^grwlng, schedull.fsg, material procurerheni and construttion processes.

*• tWw.iolhorneo^Mh/pu8r»Mientiff:eor»acuctionpTOceBfrofnro«r»<iii9ning iocttf^. weeiiv teieprttrv
.  ano manpe etoet-ostbnite and manaflenicrr. Haht^ thasa schedule on SuOd^ Trerw project manaomwrr.
^ware. S<hedute.su^«intrktdrs. tospeb to prbjict wc., Wk and approve invokes (v paSw
M> con o^ersite. (hitetiab ortJerino and, inventory msnapement.

Director, Housing and energy Serves scptemoe. 2009 - Novcmbc 2016

Busln^. Rscal. Operaiibnal and Compnance.responsibil/ty fa--federally funded programs that provide
home energy ̂rto emergency as^starxe, HQS home repair, end home efnciency-and Insulation
upgrades to Inwn* erigiWe hoyseholds in Curn.berland and York.Gounty. Maine.

.. pverscc.tfi^-yanceo^oreriaaaiietponjionaiwo'cneAiinMite.renakationandoenerMoeterminailoo erooram
Wegrtty ano.conipflance ror Fedeiai DHHS-LiKEAP-Giani, provMngtiome-tieatirk) oencTtu re'aporosknaieiv 3 SOO
idiv-iqcorBc .Cumperland County houschotds-ennuaily.

• Qivsec as a^roi Piogrim and a/ojco Manageniem 'viciuolng: cikhi cOgibatv ano pio»im tarvdaikc oT r<Ht s
Ucnaw Agency Lending roi-MUO. HSMA. »«ne-peco and Cumbeiiwo Count^ Communliy Oevdmm Piod.a.n
runi^ng titftporied home <epa«. home •enovaiiorr.and enerpy:efrJciei*v upgrades oi '.•&( bn.io ii*)de«ai"e Income
houschoTdi h Cwntcfland and roili County.

i Coftt.act. Opoaibnai and Fiuai o-.-e.$l9hi 'erFedc.at IXW. aroOMMSk'.-; income v.'Mthe.Uaf<i«, Ccmrat Heat
ImiwwcineAi and Eif*iency (nergy Conservation nognnw.



Business.H,nsotr 2006 - 2009

"iato9«' jwoxxllns Office pf ihe Registrar ax>se catalooand olherle^ijy tundtog to coUeges and unlvefsftles fh the United Stat« and Canada
. *J«unue»>-aMtAaMMtti*eceWaWe/Cerwj)trtgo.Pa\t<>i,Ftt*f<al»ndi*i:Rto^

• Cash floM and dne or Credn managentcn.

.A<xcunti^g4^i3fo 200^ . 2006

.Resf!t^trte fOf ̂ essorr«e(unctk*w .o*V/AftandPaYroflfofW^^ In iKls position I
was adcounling Gaison to a variety of ptograms arnong others, tra was respbnsible to accurate
paw pnaeo^ to depart^ uwt operated 2RP/365. I streamliriejd-pevrcD process and systems
that o^mued digital-assets-(or woricnow and intomatlon retrieval (gr lax-and audit purposes-.-

AetsflCfU/op stu/.A<tv<erHsing PhotogrspHer
1998 • 2004

Managtf^ studlo-prtotograpner (or New Engla.nd*s firs.l.digHal commercial pKolooraphy studio
re^.sfbtefOr pr.o)eci management, process wortcflow. and capacity and-demand rttanagcmem
Oversaw the photography and prepress produaiort to first digitally produc.ed lloEan retail catalog.

CMtMtog snd Advertismg Photognpher
1987 • 1998.

Produce a^rtWng and retail catalog photography to io«l and regional companies servrno a
natonal marhet inchrdlog; u Bean, Cole Maan. Eastern Mountain Sports. Brookstone and ot'Sers.

Eoucatiow

eacKelor of-Arts, Cepgi:aphv
ftntiingiet^ I9U

Olddtfford School Committee.-Vke Chairman

*  CwTl^vCarrmkiw; ConwiInH: WiorwM tonrt«jicc C»i« Neoe(i»:» iCoOeaK*Nigging) Ci^ed le consecintve I rut icms f tOpS »nd to*- Scy«i,Ou.in^-ocfiod ihM Ki«oi'$rflD»
-WVlerteA *S30 «niS«n CoOt''Cnovjtion ol tUdoetord H^e^ School.

Central America v^meet ivoik
HC'Ctfiii. eoS4 Rk* i-S«n Bcin*^ Cuatorvti

■  ■l™. <cmc .«

4t-MtKC


